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          1  MAYOR'S OFFICE OF CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Mr. Millman.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: I am Claude Millman,

          4  Director of the Mayor's Office of Contracts, and the

          5  City Chief Procurement Officer. I appreciate the

          6  opportunity to appear before you today.

          7                 (Mr. Millman was previously sworn in

          8  during the hearing on the Procurement Policy Board

          9  held earlier on this date.)

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: As you know, our core

         11  functions are to approve certain agency procurement

         12  actions, administer the VENDEX system, monitor

         13  contractor performance evaluations, operate the

         14  public access center, provide technical assistance

         15  and guidance to the agencies, examine and propose

         16  changes to the procurement rules and procedures,

         17  review non-responsibility appeal determinations,

         18  administer charter-mandated public hearings,

         19  participate on the Human Services Action Group, a

         20  partnership of City and Human Services Agencies, and

         21  automate and streamline the City's procurement

         22  operations.

         23                 The proposed FY 2000 Executive Budget

         24  for the Mayor's Office of Contracts is $1,658,374,

         25  which consists of $1,534,228 for Personal Services,
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          2  and $124,146 for Other Than Personal Services.

          3                 The reference in our OTPS budget to

          4  $10,000 related to the day care of children is a

          5  data entry error which is being corrected,

          6  hopefully.

          7                 The Office has 30 scheduled

          8  positions, our budget is essentially unchanged from

          9  FY '99. At the current level of funding this office

         10  will continue to fulfill its mission at a high level

         11  of proficiency by carefully organizing and

         12  leveraging its resources and oversight.

         13                 This office has devoted its resources

         14  in the last year to improving the quality and

         15  timeliness of City procurement. The more that we

         16  streamline the procurement process, the more city

         17  agencies will be able to focus on and improve the

         18  substance of their contracts, the quality of their

         19  contractors and ensure the timely delivery of

         20  services.

         21                 We will continue to focus on those

         22  issues in Fiscal Year 2000.

         23                 Working with the Procurement Policy

         24  Board, the vendor community and the City agencies,

         25  we have in the last year made the important changes
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          2  in simplifying and clarifying the rules and that the

          3  procedures of City procurement.

          4                 We continue to address those issues

          5  in the coming year. Thank you for this opportunity

          6  to testify. I would be happy to answer any of your

          7  questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Of the 30

          9  positions, are they all filled?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: I think just a couple

         11  are vacant at this time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. That is in

         13  other words two, or somewhere around there?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: I believe it is two

         15  right now. One is vacant, I am sorry.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: And actually we have a

         18  person who is supposed to start next month.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great.

         20                 I had a question from, although it is

         21  probably with you and with OMB, but there is a

         22  question about the object code for the trade waste,

         23  has that been --

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: The day care?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I think you were
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          2  supposed to be coordinating with the Comptroller's

          3  Office to put together an object code for trade

          4  waste? Does that sound at all familiar?

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: No. I can look into it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So as far as you

          7  know, there hasn't been any work in that area?

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: That is something for

          9  our office? This is not something I have heard about

         10  before.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: It is my

         12  understanding that they are trying to encourage the

         13  question with the trade waste and the object code

         14  with the Comptroller's Office and maybe with OMB, to

         15  basically make it part of the contract budget and to

         16  come up with some kind of code.

         17                 So, I take it, since you seem to be

         18  totally unaware of it, either it isn't going forward

         19  or you are not involved in it.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: It may very well be

         21  going forward, I have no idea. I am certainly not

         22  involved in it. I can imagine certainly that OMB

         23  would be involved.

         24                 Trade waste is not --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, since it
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          2  dealt with contracts we thought there was a contract

          3  component to it.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: Trade waste is not one

          5  of the large contracting agencies. So, in fact I

          6  don't think they have an Agency Chief Contracting

          7  Officer.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Does that

          9  include waste export?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: Oh, it could involve

         11  waste export, though the Trade Waste Commission

         12  doesn't deal with waste export.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. They

         14  actually deal with licensing.

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: So, if the problem is

         16  that the Department of Sanitation doesn't have the

         17  proper codes for waste export, that could be, I

         18  haven't been apprised of it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. It was just

         20  something that came to our attention and I just

         21  thought I would bring it up since you were here.

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         24                 And also at the last hearing I think

         25  you were going to get us a list of the 75 human
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          2  services who had gotten funds from the City of New

          3  York?

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, we will be

          5  submitting something in writing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great.

          7                 Andrew.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Yes. Mr.

          9  Millman, are you aware of a proposal called the

         10  Automated Procurement System that was to have been

         11  part of FISA's new Financial Management System,

         12  which is now I guess in delay, and is not supposed

         13  to be part of the immediate roll out of the new

         14  system?

         15                 Has your office had any interaction

         16  with FISA over this? Are you continuing to work with

         17  them on this issue or is this something that is so

         18  back burner that you are not currently focused on

         19  it?

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: No, I have been very

         21  involved. The Automated Procurement System is part

         22  of the FMS system. It was I guess originally slated,

         23  parts of it were originally slated to start around

         24  now, however, in fact they will start with the

         25  beginning of the new fiscal year.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: FISA says

          3  that it has been delayed indefinitely.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: Maybe we are not talking

          5  about exactly the same thing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: This is the

          7  $8 million system that was supposed to be part of

          8  the FMS 2000 system.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: A portion of that, the

         10  whole Automated Procurement project has been what

         11  they refer to rephased I guess in the engineering

         12  community meaning --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Delayed.

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: To normal people it

         15  sounds like delayed.

         16                 But what the technology experts say

         17  is that sometimes what you have to do is rethink the

         18  way your plan is in order to minimize the risk of

         19  any portion of it failing and so you delay certain

         20  portions of it. They call that rephasing. I never

         21  understood any of this stuff before.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Certainly.

         23  But you are under the impression that all or part of

         24  the system will in fact be on line?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, part. And it will

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            10

          1  MAYOR'S OFFICE OF CONTRACTS

          2  eventually all be on line, it is just a matter of a

          3  schedule, and I can't tell you if I know the

          4  schedule by heart, some portions of it I do.

          5                 Certainly the contract registration

          6  element of the FMS system will go on line July 1st,

          7  or actually I should say I think it is July 6th,

          8  somewhere around there. And the replacement of

          9  CLIPS, which as I am sure you know is the system

         10  that DCAS uses for municipal supplies, will also be

         11  on line around that time. And right now our office,

         12  OMB and FISA are working very closely with the

         13  contractor AMS, to make sure that all of that gets

         14  done.

         15                 It is possible some portions of it

         16  may be delayed between now and then, though it is

         17  not looking like it, it is looking like things are

         18  going ahead.

         19                 There have been, as I imagine on any

         20  technology project, there are occasional glitches

         21  that you imagined, and most of those are being

         22  worked out.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: But what are

         24  the modules that are being delayed, significantly

         25  delayed? I mean, I was under the impression that
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          2  they were pushing this thing off by years, not just

          3  by months, and you are telling me, well, actually,

          4  most of the functionality that you need and the

          5  procurement system needs will be up and running by

          6  the beginning of Fiscal 2000, which is great news,

          7  it is just not quite what FISA said. So, I am now

          8  confused.

          9                 Is there anything major that is being

         10  delayed further out, do you know?

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: I think probably the

         12  biggest parts that have been rephased, as they would

         13  put it, involve not registration and not CLIPS, it

         14  is the portions that don't involve municipal

         15  supplies but involve solicitation. So, for example,

         16  one aspect of the process that is kind of bizarre I

         17  guess to anyone who is not a software engineer I

         18  suppose, is that the process is being implemented

         19  kind of backwards.

         20                 The end of our procurement system

         21  which its registration is implemented first and then

         22  we kind of go backwards from there. So, the portions

         23  that deal with solicitation but are outside of

         24  municipal supply are being implemented but it is a

         25  little slower than we originally hoped.
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          2                 However, originally when the whole

          3  project was planned, it was planned as a pilot for

          4  just three agencies. So, some of the delay and we

          5  have kind of won and we have lost, the whole system

          6  has been delayed somewhat but it is being done

          7  Citywide as opposed to just with three agencies.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And as far

          9  as you know, the total cost for the APS system is

         10  still around $8 million?

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't have the exact

         12  figures, but I haven't heard of any major changes in

         13  the cost.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So, in other

         15  words, you are not at all panicked about this

         16  situation?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, let's see, I

         22  have a couple of quick questions. One of them deals

         23  with operating the public access center.

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Is that the
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          2  computer?

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: The public access center

          4  is at our office basically two things, well maybe

          5  three things. One is the VENDEX system. The VENDEX

          6  system contains the vast majority of public

          7  information that most people want to know about.

          8                 So, for example, usually reporters

          9  and the like are interested in what is available on

         10  our VENDEX system, and we have basically a desk with

         11  a terminal at our office where if someone from the

         12  public wants to come and learn about the VENDEX

         13  system, they can come in and get onto that terminal.

         14  That is number one. And actually usually they are

         15  not interested in the VENDEX system, they are

         16  interested in coming and finding out is there a

         17  caution, a caution on a particular contract. So they

         18  come in and see that.

         19                 The other thing that we make

         20  available to them doesn't work as perfectly is the

         21  Oasis system, which is the Comptroller's information

         22  database, and a lot of things that were supposed to

         23  be made available we just simply tie them into the

         24  Comptroller's Office. The response time is a little

         25  better if they go directly to the Comptroller's
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          2  Office but at least we can get them the information

          3  from our office, if necessary. Very few people

          4  actually make that inquiry.

          5                 And lastly, there are some types of

          6  information that we have available on paper, but the

          7  public access usually concerns the VENDEX system.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Oh, by the way,

          9  not to be difficult, but that $10,000 related to day

         10  care has been around for a couple of years now.

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, I think my child

         12  was born around the time that -- and will probably

         13  go to college --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: That is the one

         15  that is going to college.

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: That's right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I have a couple of

         18  other questions.

         19                 You went over the 30 slots and the

         20  fact that one is vacant and about to be filled, but

         21  can you describe for the Committee the

         22  organizational structure of your office, how many

         23  staff people are assigned to the various functions,

         24  like the VENDEX unit or audit functions or central

         25  contract registry?
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: Sure. Basically our

          3  office is split into the following areas: First is

          4  procurement review, next would be I guess what I

          5  would call, might call quality assurance, is the

          6  people who do provide, look for information about

          7  contractors and try and put that into the VENDEX

          8  system and then VENDEX data entry and then the

          9  automated procurement system.

         10                 We also have some other

         11  functionalities like the public hearing unit. That

         12  is basically the bulk of it, clerical in addition to

         13  that.

         14                 I don't know the precise numbers, it

         15  is about split evenly between those groups. In terms

         16  of day-to-day function, I mean they each have their

         17  times of peaks of workload, but most of the workload

         18  happens around now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         20                 And I was wondering, given the

         21  hearing we had, the last hearing we had and the fact

         22  that there had been, as you know, we heard from some

         23  of the human service providers, that they thought

         24  there was somewhat of a back-up and that you had

         25  testified that you were going to do additional
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          2  reviews of some of the contracts and most of the I

          3  guess non-for-profits, and I am wondering if you

          4  think you might need additional personnel to do

          5  that?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't think so. I

          7  think the change that I was mentioning was when we

          8  do the reviews, as opposed to how many we do.

          9  Probably the biggest problem that we have had is, or

         10  I would say the mistake that everyone really in the

         11  procurement process has made, is a fascination with

         12  doing all of the review right before a procurement

         13  action is to take place, when in fact most of the

         14  contractors have to be the same every year.

         15                 And I guess what we have realized

         16  recently is that maybe that ought to change and what

         17  we ought to do is focus, instead of at the

         18  bottleneck period of May and June, instead of doing

         19  all of the reviews then, we should be just reviewing

         20  contractors year-round and inputting that

         21  information into the system.

         22                 So, it is really redeploying the same

         23  group of people in a more effective manner, in a way

         24  so that we get, actually we can do a better job and

         25  at the same time we can be less disruptive of the
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          2  procurement system.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, because I do

          4  have to tell you that at the last hearing and even

          5  since the last hearing, we have continued to hear

          6  from various service providers that feel that things

          7  are still delayed, that the contract should be

          8  moving quicker, that the review should happen

          9  quicker so that we are not still dealing with it

         10  nine months down the road where there are still

         11  contracts that haven't been reviewed or okayed.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, a lot of the

         13  things I mentioned are works in progress. For

         14  example, this year we are still doing the reviews

         15  right when the procurements are happening. Most of

         16  them are a little bit earlier, but that change won't

         17  impact the system probably for a year or so. And

         18  also a lot of the legislative and rule changes that

         19  we talked about need to take place and be phased in.

         20                 One important one, for example, is

         21  that the Procurement Policy Board hopefully will

         22  soon pass an increase in those small purchase

         23  limits.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I told you it was

         25  a tag team.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: And hopefully shortly

          3  thereafter we will have support from the Council and

          4  that can greatly impact the procurement system in

          5  the next season.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, but, again,

          7  most of the contracts I am looking at are much

          8  larger than that.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, there are really

         10  two reasons -- first of all, a lot of the ones that

         11  get delayed are the small ones, but also if you are

         12  not spending all of your time doing a lot of work on

         13  small procurements, then you can redeploy your

         14  resources.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: Give it a shot, you will

         17  see that everything will improve.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, well, we

         19  still haven't seen the VENDEX yet either.

         20                 I just wanted to note that we have

         21  been joined by several more of my colleagues.

         22  Council Member Fiala, Council Member Rodriguez and

         23  Council Member White.

         24                 Gentlemen, do you have any questions?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, I guess

          4  that's it.

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Thank you very much.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 10:00 a.m.)
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